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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE MIDDLE DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

ORLANDO DIVISION 

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION. 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

THE GREEN SAVERS, LLC. a Florida limited 
liability corporation, also d/b/a ELITE 
SERVICES and ADVANCED DATA 
SOLUTIONS. et al., 

Defendants. 

) 
) 
) 
) Civ. No. 6-12-CV-1588-0RL-28-DAB 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

ORDER FOR PERMANENT INJUNCTION AND 
FINAL JUDGMENT AS TO CHRISTOPHER ADAMS 

Plaintiff Federal Trade Commission ("Commission" or "FTC") filed its First 

Amended Complaint for a Permanent Injunction and Other Equitable Relief pursuant to 

Sections 13(b) and 19 ofthe Federal Trade Commission Act ("FTC Act"), 15 U.S.C. §§ 53(b) 

and 57b, and the Telemarketing and Consumer Fraud and Abuse Prevention Act 

("Telemarketing Act"), 15 U.S.C. §§ 6101-6108, to obtain temporary. preliminary, and 

permanent injunctive relief. rescission or reformation of contracts, restitution, disgorgement 

of ill-gotten gains. and other equitable relief for Defendants' acts or practices in violation of 

Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a). and in violation of the FTC's Trade 

Regulation Rule entitled "Telemarketing Sales Rule" ("TSR"), 16 C.F.R. Part 310. 

The Court, having found all Defendant Christopher Adams in default, and the 
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cument 72  DFiled 09/25/13  DPage 2 of 24 PageID 1547C o m m i s s i o n ,  h a v i n g  m o v e d  for e n t r y  o f  d e f a u l t  j u d g m e n t  o n  a l l  c o u n t s  o f  t h e  F i r s t  A m e n d e d  C o m p l a i n t  a g a i n s t  D e f e n d a n t  A d a m s .  I T  I S  T H E R E F O R E  O R D E R E D ,  

A D J U D G E D ,  A N D  D E C R E E D  a s  f o l l o w s :  F I N D I N G S  I. T h i s  is a n  a c t i o n  b y  t h e  C o m m i s s i o n  i n s t i t u t e d  u n d e r  S e c t i o n s  1 3 ( b )  a n d  19 o f  t h e  F T C  A c t ,  15 U . S . C .  § §  5 3 ( b )  a n d  5 7 b ,  the T e l e m a r k e t i n g  A c t ,  15 U . S . C .  § §  1 0 . 1 - 1 0 . 8 .  a n d  t h e  T S R ,  

16 C . F . R .  P a r t  3 0 . 5  P u r s u a n t  to t h e s e  S e c t i o n s  o f t h e  F T C  A c t  a n d  t h e  T e l e m a r k e t i n g  A c t ,  t h e  C o m m i s s i o n  h a s  t h e  a u t h o r i t y  t o  s e e k  t h e  r e l i e f  c o n t a i n e d  h e r e i n .  2. T h e  F i r s t  A m e n d e d  C o m p l a i n t  s t a t e s  a c l a i m  u p o n  w h i c h  r e l i e f  m a y  b e  

g r a n t e d  u n d e r  S e c t i o n s  5 ( a ) .  13(b), a n d  19 o f  t h e  FTC A c t .  15 U . S . C .  § §  4 5 ( a ) .  5 3 ( b ) ,  a n d  5 7 b .  a n d  S e c t i o n  6 ( b )  o f  t h e  T e l e m a r k e t i n g  Act. 15 U . S . C .  

§ 610OS(b). 3. T h i s  C o u r t  h a s  j u r i s d i c t i o n  o v e r  t h e  s u b j e c t  m a t t e r  o f t h i s  c a s e  a n d  p e r s o n a l  j u r i s d i c t i o n  o v e r  D e f e n d a n t  A d a m s .  

4. V e n u e  in t h e  U n i t e d  S t a t e s  D i s t r i c t  C o u r t  for t h e  M i d d l e  D i s t r i c t  o f  F l o r i d a  is p r o p e r  p u r s u a n t  t o  15 U . S . C .  § 5 3 ( b )  a n d  2 8  U . S . C .  § 1 3 9 l ( b )  a n d  ( c ) .  5. T h e  a c t i v i t i e s  o f  D e f e n d a n t  A d a m s  is "in o r  a f f e c t i n g  c o m m e r c e "  as " c o m m e r c e "  is d e f i n e d  in S e c t i o n  4 o f  t h e  FTC A c t .  15 U . S . C .  § 4 4 .  6. D e f e n d a n t  A d a m s  w a s  s e r v e d  w i t h  p r o c e s s  in t h i s  m a t t e r .  He a l s o  w a s  s u b s e q u e n t l y  s e r v e d  w i t h  a c o p y  o f  t h e  F T C ' s  F i r s t  A m e n d e d  C o m p l a i n t  o f  w i t h  was Rut of w a s  d a m s  
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engaging, or causing a telemarketer to engage, in initiating an outbound telephone call to a 

person who previously has stated that he or she docs 

telephone 

call docs 
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DEFINITIONS 

For purposes of this Order, the following definitions shall apply: 

I. "Asset" or "Assets" means any legal or equitable interest in, right to, or claim 

to. any real or personal property, including. but not limited to, "goods," "instruments," 

"equipment," "fixtures," "general intangibles," "inventory." "checks," or "notes," (as these 

terms arc defined in the Uniform Commercial Code), lines of credit, chattels, leaseholds, 

contracts, mail or other deliveries, shares of stock, lists of consumer names, accounts, credits, 

premises, receivables, funds, and all cash, wherever located. 

2. "Assisting others" includes, but is not limited to: 

A. performing customer service functions, including, but not limited to, 

receiving or responding to consumer complaints; 

B. formulating or providing, or arranging for the formulation or provision 

of, any advertising or marketing material, including, but not limited to, any telephone sales 

script, direct mail solicitation, or the design, text. or use of 
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9. "Individual Defendants" means Yikash Jawalapersad and Christopher 

Adams. and by whatever other names each may be known. 

I 
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telemarketing, or assisting others engaged in telemarketing. 

III. 

PERMANENT BAN ON MARKETING DEBT RELIEF PRODUCTS OR SERVICES 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendant Adams, whether acting directly or 

through any person, trust, corporation, partnership, limited liability company, subsidiary, 

division, or other device, is permanently restrained and enjoined from engaging in, 

participating in, or assisting others in the advertising, marketing, promotion, offering for sale, 

sale, or distribution of any debt relief product or service. 

IV. 

PROHIBITED PRACTICES RELATING TO 
FINANCIAL RELATED PRODUCTS OR SERVICES 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendant Adams, and his officers, agents, 

servants, employees, attorneys, and all other persons 
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credit, including but not limited to: 

a. closing costs or other fees; 

b. the payment schedule, the monthly payment amount(s), or 

other payment terms, or whether there is a balloon payment; 

interest rate(s), annual percentage rate(s), or finance charge; 

the loan amount, the amount of credit, the draw amount, or 

outstanding balance; the loan term, �t�~�e� draw period, or 

maturity; or any other term of credit; 

c. the savings associated with the credit; 

d. the amount of cash to be disbursed to the borrower out of the 

proceeds, or the amount of cash to be disbursed on behalf of 

the borrower to any third party; 

e. whether the payment ofthe minimum amount specified each 

month covers both interest and principal, and whether the 

credit has or can result in negative amortization; 

f. that the credit does not have a prepayment penalty or that no 

prepayment penalty and/or other fees or costs will be incurred 

if the consumer subsequently refinances; and 

g. that the interest ratc(s) or annual percentage rate(s) are fixed 

rather than adjustable or adjustable rather than fixed; 

2. That any person can improve any consumer's credit record, credit 

12 
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history, or credit rating by permanently removing negative information 

from the consumer's credit record, credit history, or credit rating, even 

where such information is accurate and not obsolete; 

3. Any person's ability to improve or otherwise affect a consumer's credit 

record, credit history, credit rating, or ability to obtain credit; 

4. Any aspect of any mortgage loan modification service or foreclosure 

relief service, including, but not limited to, the amount of savings or 

reduction in interest rate, loan principal, or monthly payment that a 

consumer will receive from purchasing, using, or enrolling in such 

mortgage loan modification service or foreClosure relief service; the 

amount of time before a consumer will receive a mortgage loan 

modification or relief from foreclosure; the likelihood that a consumer 

will obtain a modified mortgage loan or relief from foreclosure; or the 

reduction or cessation of collection calls; and 

5. That a consumer will receive legal representation; and 

B. Advertising or assisting others in advertising credit terms other than those 

terms that actually are or will be arranged or offered by a creditor or lender. 

13 
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v. 

PROHIBITED PRACTICES RELATING TO 
ANY PRODUCTS OR SERVICES 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendant Adams, and his officers, agents, 

servants, employees. attorneys. and all other persons in active concert or participation with 

any of them, who receive actual notice of this Order by personal service or otherwise, 

whether acting directly or through any trust, corporation, partnership, limited liability 

company, subsidiary, division, or other device, in connection with the advertising, marketing, 

promotion, offering for sale or sale of any product or service, arc permanently restrained and 

enjoined from misrepresenting or assisting others in misrepresenting, expressly or by 

implication, any material fact, including but not limited to: 

A. Any material aspect of the nature or terms of any refund, cancellation, 

exchange, or repurchase policy, including, but not limited to, the likelihood of 

a consumer obtaining a full or partial refund, or the circumstances in which a 

full or partial refund will be granted to the consumer; 

B. That any person is affiliated with. endorsed or approved by, or otherwise 

connected to any other person, government entity, or public, non-profit, or 

other non-commercial program, or any other program; 

C. The total costs to purchase, receive, or use. or the quantity of, the product, or 

serv1ce; 

D. Any material restriction, limitation, or condition on purchasing, receiving, or 

14 
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using the product or service; and 

E. Any material aspect of the performance, efficacy, nature, or characteristics of 

the product or service. 

VI. 

SUBSTANTIATION FOR BENEFIT, �J�>�~�:�R�F�O�R�.�M�A�N�C�E�,� AND EFFICACY CLAIMS 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendant Adams, and his officers, agents, 

servants, employees, attorneys, and all other persons in active concert or participation with 

any of them, who receive actual notice of this Order by personal service or otherwise. 

whether acting directly or through any trust, corporation. partnership, limited liability 

company. subsidiary. division, or other device. in connection with the advertising, marketing, 

promotion, otTcring for sale or sale of any product or service, arc permanently restrained and 

enjoined from making any representation or assisting others in making any representation, 

expressly or by implication, about the benefits. performance, or efficacy of any product or 

service, unless, at the time such representation is made, Defendant Adams possesses and 

relics upon competent and reliable evidence that substantiates that the representation is true. 

VII. 

MONETARY .JUDGMENT 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that: 

A. Judgment is hereby entered in favor of the Commission and against Defendant 

Adams, jointly 
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VIII. 

PROHIBITIONS REGARDING �C�O�N�S�U�M�E�I�~� INFORMATION 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendant Adams, and his officers, agents, 

servants, employees, attorneys, and all other persons in active concert or participation with 

any of them who receive actual notice of this Order by personal service or otherwise, arc 

permanently restrained and enjoined from: 

A. Disclosing. using. or benefitting from customer information, including the 

name, address, telephone number, email address, social security number, other identifYing 

information, or any data that enables access to a customer's account (including a credit card, 

bank account, or other financial account), of any person which Defendant Adams obtained 

prior to entry of this Order in connection with the marketing or sale of any debt relief product 

or service; and 

B. Failing to dispose of such customer information in all forms in his 

possession, custody, or control within thirty (30) days after entry of this Order. Disposal 

shall be by means that protect against unauthorized access to the customer information, such 

as by burning, pulverizing, or shredding any papers, and by erasing or destroying any 

electronic media. to ensure that the customer information cannot practicably be read or 

reconstructed. 

Prm•ided. however. that customer information need not be disposed of. and may be 

disclosed, to the extent requested by a government agency or required by a law, regulation, 

or court order. 

17 



Case 6:12-cv-01588-JA-DAB   Document 72   Filed 09/25/13   Page 18 of 24 PageID 1563

IX. 

PROHIBITION ON COLLECTING ON ACCOUNTS 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendant Adams, and his officers, agents, 

servants, employees, attorneys, and all other persons in active concert or participation with 

any of them who receive actual notice of this Order by personal service or otherwise, 

whether acting directly, or through any trust. corporation, partnership, limited liability 

company, subsidiary, division, or other device, arc permanently restrained and enjoined from 

attempting to collect, collecting, or assigning any right to collect payment from any 

consumer who purchased or agreed to purchase any debt relief product or service from 

Defendant Adams. 

X. 

ORDER ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendant Adams obtain acknowledgments of 

receipt of this Order: 

A. Defendant Adams, within 7 days of entry of this Order, must submit to the 

Commission an acknowledgment of receipt ofthis Order sworn under penalty of perjury. 

B. For 5 years after entry of this Order, Defendant Adams for any business that 

he. individually or collectively with any other Defendant, is the majority 
busdieipt

or 
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postal, email. and Internet addresses; (6) describe the activities of each business, including 

the products and services offered, the means of advertising. marketing, and sales, and the 

involvement of any other Defendant (which Defendant Adams must describe if he knows or 

should know due to his own involvement); (7) describe in detail whether and how Defendant 

Adams is in compliance with each Section of this Order; and (8) provide a copy of each 

Order Acknowledgment obtained pursuant to this Order, unless previously submitted to the 

Commission. 

B. For twenty (20) years following entry of this Order, Defendant Adams must 

submit a compliance notice, sworn under penalty of perjury, within 14 days of any change in 

the following: (I) name, including aliases or fictitious name, or residence address; (2) title or 

role in any business activity, including any business for which Defendant Adams performs 

services whether as an employee or otherwise and any entity in which Defendant Adams has 

any ownership interest, and identifY its name. physical address, and Internet address, if any; 

(3) any designated point of contact; or (4) the structure of any Corporate Defendant or any 

entity that Defendant Adams has any ownership interest in or directly or indirectly controls 
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employee or otherwise, that person's: name, addresses, and telephone numbers; job title or 

position; dates of service; and, if applicable, the reason for termination; 

C. Complaints and refund requests, whether received directly or indirectly, such 

as through a third party, and any response; 

D. All records necessary to demonstrate full compliance with each provision of 

this Order, including all submissions to the Commission; and 

E. A copy of each advertisement or other marketing material. 

XIII. 

COMPLIANCE MONITORING 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, for the purpose of monitoring Defendant 

Adams's compliance with this Order. including the financial representations upon which part 

ofthejudgment was suspended: 

A. Within 14 days of receipt of a written request from M O N I T 0 . 0 5  T c  1 1 . 6 8 5 6  0  0  1 0 . 6  2 0 6 . 5 4 5 . 0 t 1 m 
 ( F T p i e  ) T j 
 0 . 0 1 3 . 0 2 4 T j 
 0 . 0 1 3 6  T c  2 . 8 5 7  0  T d 
 ( p a r t  ) T 2 4 T r t i s e m e n t  with 

FURTHER 
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representatives of the Commission to interview any employee or other person affiliated with 

Defendant Adams who has agreed to such an interview. The person interviewed may have 

counsel present. 

C. The Commission may use all other lawful means, including posing, through 

its representatives. as consumers, suppliers, or other individuals or entities, to Defendant 

Adams or any individual or entity affiliated with Defendant Adams, without the necessity of 

identification or prior notice. Nothing in this Order limits the Commission's lawful usc of 

compulsory process, pursuant to Sections 9 and 20 ofthe FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 49, 57b-l. 

XIV. 

LIFTING OF ASSET FREEZE 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the freeze on the assets of Defendant Adams 

shall remain in effect until the Commission has received the total amount required b.2421 0 0 y860 Td
(on7 Tc 2.tections)Tj
ET
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